
 

OCONEE COUNTY PROCUREMENT OFFICE 
415 S. PINE STREET 

WALHALLA, SC 29691 
Tronda C. Popham, CPPB, Procurement Director    Telephone:  864-638-4141 
Katie Brown, Buyer                             Fax:     864-638-4142 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 2 

 
BID NO. 19-06 

 
Inmate Food Services for Oconee County Detention Center 

 
 Bid Date: Tuesday, March 24, 2020 @ 2:00 pm 

 
This Addendum #2 includes answers to the following question(s) and/or clarification(s) from 
Oconee County.   

A signed copy of this Addendum #2 must also be returned with your bid. 
 
Question 1:  Will the County please provide a copy of the current food service contract along with  
  amendments including price adjustments throughout the life of the contract? 
Answer 1:  Yes, See attachment # 1 
 
Question 2: Will the County please provide copies of all 2019/YTD revenue meals and invoices? 
Answer 2: The County will provide copies of 3 months invoicing. Invoices from 12/5/2019 to  
  2/14/2020 are provided, see Attachment # 2 
  
Question 3:  Will the County please provide copies of the current inmate menu? 
Answer 3: Yes, See Attachment # 3 
 
Question 4:  Is the County open to different meal pattern options? 
Answer 4:  Yes, if proposing different meal pattern options, they must be described in detail. 
 
Question 5: Will the County please provide a copy of the current kitchen staff schedule along with  
  salaries and wages? 
Answer 5: The cost of the salaries and wages are paid by the current Inmate Food Service   
  provider therefore this information is not available.  
 
Question 6:  Are there any additional costs for the contractor’s employees to attend the 40-hour  
  orientation and annual Jail Training Program? 
Answer 6: OCDC will provide the training therefore there will not be additional cost for the   
  training. 
 
Question 7:  Will the County please provide the weekly amounts required for meal specifics for;  
  Snacks, Sack Meals for work crews, court bags, and any additional meals that are to be  
  prepared beyond the tray feeding? 
Answer 7: Page 30 of RFP  
  A snack bag shall be available for night shift staff. Provide a list of items to be included  
  in the snack bags. Approximately 4-8 per night. 

 

 
 
Addendum No. 2 Inmate Food Services for Oconee County Detention Center

 
 

Page 1 of 47



 

  A snack bag shall be available 24/7 for diabetic and/or pregnant inmates. Provide a list  
  of items to be included in snack bag. Currently medical snacks consist of beverage (milk  
  or sugar free Gatorade – depends on blood sugar level) and peanut butter sandwich. We  
  average six per day (diabetic and pregnancy). 

 
Page 27 of RFP 
3.10.7 A sack lunch shall be provided for inmates who miss the service of the regularly 
scheduled meal due to courts, work assignments, or late book-ins. The lunch shall 
consist of one (1) sandwich with a total of four (4) ounces of meat/cheese; two (2) 
condiments, one (1) fresh fruit, one (1) packaged dessert item, and one (1) packaged or 
packet beverage. Estimate of sack lunches required on a daily basis is 18 meals. 
 

Question 8: Is there currently a staff dining option? 
Answer 8: No, we do not utilize a staff dinning option. 
 
Question 9: Will the County please provide a copy of the current staff menu? 
Answer 9: We do not utilize a staff dinning option, therefore, no staff menu is available. 
  
Question 10:  What is the current cost of staff meals? 
Answer 10:  Staff meals have not been utilized. Trinity Food services proposed a cost of $3.50 per  
  meal in their proposal response to RFP 14-02, which is listed in the requested   
  contract, see Attachment # 1. 
 
Question 11:  What is the current cost of the 24-hour coffee/beverages program? 
Answer 11: The current cost of the 24-hour coffee program is included in the pricing of the meals.  
  This is not to be billed as a separate charge. 

 
Question 12:  Will the County please provide the total number of religious meals currently being  
  provided? 
Answer 12: Page 30 of RFP 
  Religious diets – average of two per day (no pork or gelatin products, substitute chicken  
  or beef patty and alternate dessert) 

a. Do you currently provide pre-packaged meals? 
 Answer: No pre-packaged meals are currently being served. 

i. If so, is the vendor allowed to charge separately? 
Answer: No, the vendor shall not charge separately. 

ii. What is the current price for these meals? 
Answer: No pre-packaged meals are being severed, therefore, no price is 
available. 

b. Do you currently serve a common fare menu? 
 Answer: No, the County does not currently serve a common fare menu. 

i. Is the County okay with an approved common fare menu? 
 Answer: Yes, the County will accept an approved common fare menu. 

Question 13: Will the County please supply a daily break down of how many diets and of each type are 
  currently being served? (Diabetic, Low Sodium, Kosher, Halal, etc.) 
Answer 13: Page 30 of RFP 

  The  following Special (therapeutic / religious) diets are currently being served: 
 Diabetic – average of four per day 

Food Allergy – average five per day 
Religious diets – average of two per day (no pork or gelatin products, substitute 
chicken or beef patty and alternate dessert) 
Kosher diets – average three per month (shall not be served past expiration date) 
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Question 14: Will the County please provide the exact number of diabetic and pregnancy snacks  
  currently being provided daily? 
Answer 14: The jail population changes daily so the number of diabetic and pregnancy snacks  
  can change daily. March 2, 2020 the County provided 4 diabetic and 1    
  pregnancy snack bags.  
 
Question 15:  RFP section 3.10.5 states: “Only 100% fruit juice may be used as a breakfast fruit  
  serving.” Is this a menu requirement as no other reference to mandatory fruit is made in  
  the RFP? There are no SC jail or ACA rules stating that fruit is required on menus. 
Answer 15: If replacing a fruit item with fruit juice it must be 100% fruit juice.  
 
Question 16:  How many inmate kitchen workers does the County currently have assigned to the  
  kitchen? 
Answer 16:  Page 25 of RFP 

3.1.1 Inmate worker labor is available to supplement the contractor staff in varying and 
fluctuating quantities. There are currently four to eight inmates working in food 
service daily. No specific amount of inmate labor can be guaranteed by the 
County; however, inmate labor will be made available when possible. The Food 
Service Manager will be responsible for supervising inmate labor whenever such 
labor can be made available.  

a.  How many shifts per day? 
  Answer: Inmate workers help with all three meals and cleanup.  

Question 17:  Are any inmates in the facility including kitchen workers, receiving special meals or  
  double portions as an incentive? 
Answer 17:  Kitchen workers are not given special meals or double portions as an incentive. Only  
  “Off Site inmate workers” are provided with heavier portions. See page 28 of RFP. 

3.1.2 For all in house meals, “Off Site inmate workers” shall be provided heavier 
portions, in accordance with section 3.10.3.  For off-site meals (lunch) inmate 
workers’ (animal shelter, litter detail) meal shall be provided in individual 
coolers with adequate ice packs to ensure food safety.  The lunch shall consist of 
a minimum of two (2) sandwiches with a total of four (4) ounces of meat/cheese 
per sandwich; two (2) condiments, one (1) fresh fruit, one (1) packaged dessert 
item, one (1) packaged or packet beverage and two (2) 16oz bottle of water. 
Average of 4-10 off-site meals M-F, 2 on Saturday, and 2 on Sunday. 

a.  Can the vendor charge for extra portions? 
 Answer: No. Pricing for Off Site inmate worker meals should be noted on the Meal 
 Fee Proposal (page 32 of RFP). This pricing is in accordance with Section 3.1.2 of  
 the RFP; that states that Off Site inmate workers receive heavier portions. 
 

Question 18:  Is the County receiving any food commodities? 
Answer 18: NO, the County is not receiving any food commodities.  

a. If so, please provide the annual value for YTD 2019. 
Answer: N/A 
 

Question 19:  Is milk currently being served in bulk containers or individual cartons? 
Answer 19:  Milk is currently being served in individual cartons. 
 
Question 20:  Is it acceptable to use bulk condiments (jelly, margarine, syrup, ketchup, salad dressing,  
  etc.)? 
Answer 20: Yes, bulk condiments will be acceptable.  
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Question 21:  Does the kitchen slice its own meats, or does the contractor need to provide pre-sliced  
  meats? 
Answer 21:  Attachment 4 of the RFP lists the current kitchen equipment. Line 29 is a slicer. Vendor  
  may slice the meats in the kitchen using the slicer or provide pre-sliced meats. 
 
Question 22:  Are fresh potatoes acceptable or do they need to be dehydrated? 
Answer 22:  Fresh or dehydrated potatoes will be accepted. 
 
Question 23:  Can eggs be scrambled/prepared from fresh or do they need to be bagged liquid eggs? 
Answer 23:  Fresh or bagged liquid eggs will be accepted. 
 
Question 24:  What is currently being included in the night shift snack bag? 
Answer 24: No night shift snack bags are currently provided 

a. What is the current cost for the night shift snack bag? 
 Answer: No night shift snack bags are currently provided therefore no cost is 
 available. 

b. Would the sample provided for the inmate sack lunch (RFP Section 3.10.7) be a 
sufficient offering? 

 Answer: Yes. See page 27 of RFP. 
 3.10.7 A sack lunch shall be provided for inmates who miss the service of the 

regularly scheduled meal due to courts, work assignments, or late book-ins. The 
lunch shall consist of one (1) sandwich with a total of four (4) ounces of 
meat/cheese; two (2) condiments, one (1) fresh fruit, one (1) packaged dessert 
item, and one (1) packaged or packet beverage. Estimate of sack lunches 
required on a daily basis is 18 meals. 

Question 25:  For the proposed sample special diet menus – is providing a copy of our current diet  
  manual sufficient or do specific sample menus need to be provided? 
Answer 25: No, a copy of your current diet manual is not sufficient. Specific sample menus   
  shall be provided. 
 
Question 26: Are bidders permitted to take exception to any provision of the RFP? 
Answer 26: No exceptions will be allowed on Item 7 listed on the proposal form, page  
  # 30 of the RFP. Proposers are permitted to take exceptions to the RFP. If   
  exceptions are being taken the proposer shall include an explanation on separate   
  page and label it with the number of the section and page number.   
 
Question 27:  Will the County allow the item-by-item nutritional analysis to be submitted on USB or CD 
  and included with the proposal response? 
Answer 27: Yes, the item-by-item nutritional analysis may be submitted on USB or CD. 
 
Question 28:  Will the County please provide a copy of the pre-bid meeting sign-in sheet? 
Answer 28:  Yes, see attachment # 4. 
 
Question: 29:  Can you provide the last 3 months’ invoices from current vendor? 
Answer 29:  Yes, Invoices from 12/5/2019 to 2/14/2020 are provided, see Attachment # 2. 
 
Question 30:   Can you provide a list of current equipment in use and approximate age of equipment? 
Answer 30:  A list of equipment is provided in the RFP, see page # of the RFP. 
  The equipment was purchased when the facility was constructed in 2015 so the   
  average age of the equipment is 4 to 5 years old. 
 
 

 
 
Addendum No. 2 Inmate Food Services for Oconee County Detention Center

 
 

Page 4 of 47



 

Question 31:  Can you provide current menus? 
Answer 31: Yes, see attachment # 3. 
 
Question 32:  Can you provide number of inmate grievances in last 6 months? 
Answer 32: We do NOT have a way of providing an exact number of grievances made on the kitchen.  
  There have been a three or more in the last six months. The requests normally go directly  
  to the food provider for them to respond. 
 
Question 33:  Is the county willing to give approximate pay to current kitchen employees? 
Answer 33:  The cost of the salaries and wages are paid by the current Inmate Food Service   
  provider therefore this information is not available. 
 
 

 

END ADDENDUM NO. 2 
 

Dated:  March 6, 2020 

 

Please acknowledge receipt of Addendum by signing and attaching to your bid. 

 

BY: ___________________________________ DATE: _______________________________ 
(Contractor) 

 

____________________________________ _______________________________ 
(Signature)     (Title of Signing Officer) 
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David M. Miller June 6, 2019

Attachment # 1
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